
 
Date: 6th September, 2024 
 
To,        
Listing Compliances, 
BSE Limited, 
P.J. Towers, Fort, 
Mumbai – 400001. 
Scrip Code: 511131, Scrip ID: Kamanwala 
 
Dear Sir / Ma’am, 
 
Sub: Notice of the 40th Annual General Meeting (AGM) and Annual Report 2023-24. 
 
Dear Sir/Ma’am, 
 
In compliance with Reg. 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, please find enclosed the Notice of 40th AGM and Annual Report for fiscal 
year 2023-24. The same will be made available on the Company’s website 
www.kamanwalahousing.com.  
 
The schedule of AGM is as set out below: 
Event Date Time 
Relevant Date / Cut-off date to 
vote on AGM Resolutions 

23rd September, 2024 NA 

Book Closure date From 24th September, 2024 to 30th 
September, 2024 (Both days inclusive) 

NA 

Commencement of E-Voting 27th September, 2024 9:00 A.M. 
End of E-Voting 29th September, 2024 5:00 P.M. 
AGM 30th September, 2024 01:00 P.M. 
 
This is for your information and record. 
 
Thanking you, 
Yours faithfully, 
 
For Kamanwala Housing Construction limited 
 
 
 
 
Divya Agarwal 
Company Secretary  
Encl: As above 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
To the Members of KAMANWALA HOUSING CONSTRUCTION LIMITED 

Report on the audit of the standalone financial statements 

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Kamanwala Housing 
Construction Limited (“the Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including the statement of  other comprehensive income), the Cash Flow 
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity and for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (hereinafter referred to as “Ind AS standalone financial statements’’). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except 
for the effects of the matters disclosed in basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the aforesaid standalone 
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 as amended (‘’the 
Act’’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its Losses 
including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended on that 
date. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 
We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing (SAs) as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Ind AS 
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 
‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act 
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements. 

The Company’s current assets include interest receivable balances amounting to Rs.294.12 Lakhs, in 
respect of which direct confirmations from the respective parties have not been provided to us by the 
management of the Company.  In the absence of such direct confirmations from the parties or sufficient 
and appropriate alternate audit evidence, we are unable to comment on the adjustments and changes in 
accordance with the principles of Ind AS 1, Presentation of financial statements, if any, that may be 
required to the carrying value of the aforementioned balances in the accompanying Financial Statements. 
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Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters (`KAM’) are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period.  These matters were addressed 
in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  We have determined the matters 
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 
1.Evaluation of uncertain tax positions:- The

Company has material uncertain tax positions
including matters under dispute which involves
significant judgment to determine the possible
outcome of these disputes.

There are pending litigations which has been 
mentioned in Note No. 39 (A) – a) to d) to the 
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements. 

The litigations are with respect to dues of 
Income tax, sales tax which has not been 
deposited by the company on account of 
disputes.   

Our audit procedures included the following: 

Obtained details of completed tax
assessments and demand upto year ended
March 31, 2024 from management.
Discussed with appropriate senior
Management and evaluated Management’s
underlying key assumptions in estimating
the tax provisions.
Assessed management’s estimate of the
possible outcome of the disputed cases.
Assessed the reason behind the pending
litigations.
Based on our procedures, we also
considered the adequacy of disclosures in
respect of pending litigations and it is
disclosed accordingly.

2.Recoverability of investments in and loans /
advances given to certain associated and Joint
venture and other Parties:

The Company has investments in certain 
associates and joint ventures with a carrying 
value of Rs. 43.50 Lakhs. 

These parties have either been incurring losses 
or has pending litigation and therefore dues are 
overdue.  Assessment of the recoverable amount 
of the investments in and loans/advances 
including interest thereon has been identified as 
a key audit matter due to: 

Significance of the carrying amount of
these balances.

The calculation of certain credit
provisions for the Company is inherently
judgmental.  Impairment provisions
(identified and unidentified) may not
reflect recent developments in credit
quality.

Our audit procedures included the following: 

We have obtained and read Management’s
assessment for identification of Indicators of
Impairment.

We performed test of controls over
impairment process through inspection of
evidence of performance of these controls.

Assessed the impairment assessment made
by the management and the assumptions
used, with particular attention
understanding the legal dispute, commercial
prospects of the assets / projects.
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The assessment required management 
to make significant estimates concerning 
the estimated future cash flows, 
qualitative assessments of the status of 
the project and its future depending on 
balance work to be performed or 
approvals to be received, and growth 
rates based on management’s view of 
future business prospects. 
 
Changes to any of these assumptions 
could lead to material changes in the 
estimated recoverable amount, 
impacting both potential impairment 
charges and also potential reversals of 
impairment taken in prior years. 

 
 

3. Loans and advances to HDIL: 
The Company had provided loans and 
advances to HDIL which was written down to 
Rs.1205.6 Lakhs, out of which an amount of 
Rs.606.2 Lakhs has only been admitted as claim 
of the Company by the Resolution 
Professional.  The management has written off 
the remaining amount of Rs.599.4 Lakhs as 
sundry balance written off in earlier years and 
the management expects to recover the 
amount of Rs.606.2 Lakhs being claim admitted 
by the Resolution Professional. 

 

Our audit procedures included the following: 
 
Our predecessor have obtained and verified the 
list of claims from Operational Creditors admitted 
by the Resolution Professional of HDIL as on 13th 
August, 2020. Accordingly, the claim of the 
Company has been admitted in the category of 
operational creditors amounting to Rs.606.2 
Lakhs. 
 
 

 
 
Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Annual report 2023-24, but does not include the standalone 
Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent 
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and those charged with the governance for the Ind AS standalone 
financial statements 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, cash flows and 
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Indian accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with 
the Companies (Indian Accounting standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities;  selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial statements. 

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included 
in Annexure “A”. This description forms part of our auditor’s report. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure 
“B” a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 
applicable. 
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2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
 

b. In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters disclosed in Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, 
proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from 
our examination of those books and proper returns adequate for the purposes of our audit. 

 
c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the statement of Other Comprehensive 

Income, the cash flow statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account. 

 
d. In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters disclosed in Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, 

the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015 as 
amended. 

 
e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2024 taken 

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

 
f. With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Control with reference to these standalone 

Financial Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in “Annexure C”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and 
operative effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting.  

 

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in Auditors report in accordance with the 
requirement of section 197 (16) of the Act as amended in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to explanation given to us the remuneration paid by the company to its 
directors of the company during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the 
Act. 
 

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial position in its 
standalone Ind AS Financial Statements - Refer note no.39A(a to d) to the Financial Statements. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts; as such the 
question of commenting on any material foreseeable losses thereon does not arise. 

iii. There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year under report to transfer 
any sums to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. The question of delay in transferring 
such sums does not arise. 
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iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other 
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts to the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed 
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any 
other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, 
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts of the standalone Ind AS Financial statements, no funds 
have been received by the company from any persons  or entities, including foreign entities 
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; and 
 

(c) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement. 

(v) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.  
 

(vi)  Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting 
softwares for maintain it books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has 
a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year 
for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares. Further, during the course of our audit we 
did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with. 

 
As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, 
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of 
audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2024.
 

 
For VINOD KUMAR JAIN & CO. 
       Chartered Accountants, 
       FRN 111513W 
 

       Vinod Kumar Jain 
       Proprietor M. No. 36373 
       UDIN: 24036373BKAKAQ6407                             
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th May, 2024 
 

49

40th ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024 
KAMANWALA HOUSING CONSTRUCTION LIMITED



Annexure “A”: Forming part of report of independent auditors to the members of KAMANWALA 
HOUSING CONSTRUCTON LIMITED for the year ended 31st March 2024 

Responsibilities for Audit of Financial Statement 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013. We are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2024 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication. 

For Vinod Kumar Jain & Co. 
  Chartered Accountants, 
  FRN 111513W 

  Vinod Kumar Jain 
  Proprietor M. No. 36373 

Place: Mumbai  
Date: 30th May, 2024 
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ANNEXURE “B” OF AUDITOR'S REPORT 
to the Independent Auditors’ report – 31st March 2024 

Annexure “B” referred to in our report to the members’ of KAMANWALA HOUSING 
CONSTRUCTION LIMITED on the accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2024. We report that 
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report of even date): 

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on 
the financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and 
explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the 
normal course of audit, we report that: 

(i) In respect of its Property, Plant and Equipment

a. (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

b. Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management
during the year and in our opinion the frequency of verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets.  No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company does not own any
immovable properties under the head Property, Plant and Equipment. Therefore, the
provision of clause (i) (c) of paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable to the
company. However, immovable property held as inventory is held in the name of the
company.

d. The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets
or both during the year. Therefore, the provision of Clause (i)(d) of paragraph 3 of the
order is not applicable to the Company.
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e. No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (i)(e) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the Company;

(ii)(a) In our opinion, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable 
intervals by the management and the coverage and procedure of such verification 
by the management is appropriate. No material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
been sanctioned any working capital facility at any point of time during the year
from banks or financial institutions and hence provisions of sub clause (ii)(b) of
Paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable.

(iii) During the year the company has made investments; has not provided any guarantee
or security; has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties, -

(a) During the year the company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature
of loans, did not stood guarantee, or did not provide security to any other entity, if
so, indicate-

(A) No amount was provided in the nature of loan during the year and the company
did not provide any guarantees or security to subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates; Therefore, the provision of clause (iii) (a) of paragraph 3 of the order
are not applicable to Company

(B) The aggregate amount provided in the nature of loans during the year was Rs.
67.20 Lakhs, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect to
such loans or advances was Rs.3,831.39 Lakhs other than subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates. Company did not provide any guarantees or security to
parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates;

(b) The investments in partnership firms and joint venture were made in the earlier
years. The terms and conditions of investments made and the terms and conditions
of all loans and advances in the nature of loans were not prejudicial to the
company’s interests except that some of them are free of interest. The company has
not given any guarantee as such question of whether their terms and conditions are
prejudicial or not, does not arise.
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(c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts
are not regular in certain cases.

(d) Interest receivable Rs. 294.12 Lakhs is overdue, as such question whether the total
amount overdue for more than ninety days or not does not arise, company is
following up for recovery, however no legal steps have been taken by the company.

(e) No loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the
year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of
existing loans given to the same parties.

(f) The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment, as
such there is no question to specify the aggregate amount, percentage thereof to
the total loans granted, aggregate amount of loans granted to Promoters, related
parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013;

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect
to the loans and investments made.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not accepted deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning
of the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Co. Act, 2013
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, framed there under. According to the
information and explanations given to us no order has been passed by the Company Law
Board, or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve bank of India or any court or any
other tribunal.

(vi) As informed to us, the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost
records under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the provisions of
clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to Company.
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(vii) According to information and explanations given to us and records produced in respect of
statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing with the appropriate
authorities undisputed statutory dues including Goods and service tax, Provident
Fund, Employees state insurance, Income-tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs,
duty of appropriate authorities, there were no arrears of outstanding statutory dues
as at March 31st 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(b) According to information and explanations given to us, the following dues of
income-tax, sales tax and value added tax have not been deposited by the
Company on account of disputes:

Name of Statute Nature of 
dues

Amount 
(Rs. In 
Lakhs)

Period to 
which the 
amount 
relates 
(FY)

Forum where dispute is pending

The MVAT Act, 2002 Sales Tax 20.93 2006-07 Commissioner of Sales Tax (Appeal)
The MVAT Act, 2002 Sales Tax 14.54 2007-08 Commissioner of Sales Tax (Appeal)
The MVAT Act, 2002 Sales Tax 4.64 2008-09 Commissioner of Sales Tax (Appeal)
The MVAT Act, 2002 Sales Tax 23.69 2010-11 Commissioner of Sales Tax (Appeal)
The MVAT Act, 2002 Sales Tax 74.56 2011-12 Commissioner of Sales Tax (Appeal)
The MVAT Act, 2002 Sales Tax 16.32 2014-15 Commissioner of Sales Tax (Appeal)
The MVAT Act, 2002 Sales Tax 31.08 2015-16 Commissioner of Sales Tax (Appeal)
The Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 404.68 2010-11 Commissioner of Income Tax Appeal
The Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 345.60 2014-15 Commissioner of Income Tax Appeal
The Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 539.45 2012-13 Hon. Bombay High Court
The Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 171.15 2013-14 Hon. Bombay High Court
The Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 38.29 2022-23 Commissioner of Income Tax Appeal

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no
any transaction not recorded in the books of account have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961).

(ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of any loan or other borrowings or any
interest due thereon to any lender.
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(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not been a declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or other lender.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there
are no funds raised on short term basis which have been utilised for long term
purposes.

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised money during the year by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments). Therefore, the provisions of Clause 
(x)(a) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the Company. 

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not made preferential allotment or private placement of shares
during the year. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (x)(b) of paragraph 3 of the order
are not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a)  We have not noticed any case of fraud by the company or any fraud on the Company
by its officers or employees during the year. The management has also not reported 
any case of fraud during the year. 

(b) During the year no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As auditor, we did not receive any whistle- blower complaint during the year.
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(xii) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a nidhi company.  Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable and clause (b) and clause (c) of Caro paragraph (xii) are not applicable.

(xiii) Accordingly, to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards. Identification of related parties were made and
provided by the management of the Company.

(xiv) (a) Based on the data provided and, subject to sub clause (b) of clause 3 (xiv) of the
Order the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size
and the nature of its business

(b) The reports of the internal auditors for the period under audit were considered by us.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him.  Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a)  The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of   India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause (b) and (c) of paragraph 3(xvii) of the 
order is not applicable. 

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non- Banking Financial or housing Finance
activities during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(b) of the Order are not
applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(c) and (d) of the
Order are not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 228.55 Lakhs during the current financial
year and company has also incurred cash losses of Rs. 826.08 Lakhs in the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the previous statutory auditors of the Company during
the year.
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(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans,
we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

(xx) There is no liability of the company under the provisions of section 135 of the
Companies Act, relating to Corporate Social Responsibility. Therefore, the provisions of
Clause (xx) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the Company.

(xix) There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by us in the Companies (Auditors Report)
Order (CARO) Reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial
statements. Accordingly, the requirement to report on the provisions of Clause (xxi) of
paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable to the holding company.

For VINOD KUMAR JAIN & CO. 
  Chartered Accountants, 
  FRN 111513W 

 Vinod Kumar Jain 
 Proprietor M. No. 36373 

PLACE: MUMBAI 
DATED: 30th May, 2024 
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ANNEXURE ‘C’ 
TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF KAMANWALA HOUSING CONSTRUCTION LIMITED 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Kamanwala 
Housing Construction Limited (“the Company’) as of 31st March, 2024 in conjunction with 
our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended 
on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls. 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).  These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls 
over financial reporting based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.  Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness.  Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.  The procedure 
selected depends on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purpose in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles.  A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of the company; (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.  

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.  Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2024, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For VINOD KUMAR JAIN & CO. 
  Chartered Accountants, 
 FRN 111513W 

 Vinod Kumar Jain 
 Proprietor M. No. 36373 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : 30th May, 2024 
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KAMANWALA HOUSING CONSTRUCTION LIMITED 

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: COMPANY BACKGROUND: 

The Company is a public limited Company domiciled and incorporated in India under the 
Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the Company is located at 406, New Udyog Mandir 
- 2, Mogul Lane, Mahim - (West) Mumbai - 400016.

The Company is engaged in the Real Estate Development business including construction of 
Residential and Commercial buildings and related activities. 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 
AND NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31st MARCH, 
2024 

Note 1 Significant Accounting Policies 

1.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements 

1.1.1 Statement of Compliance 

The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting 
Standards (“the Ind AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended 
and presentation requirement of Division II of Schedule III of the Act. Accordingly, the 
Company has prepared these Financial Statements which comprise the Balance Sheet as 
at 31st   March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and the 
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended as on that date, and accounting 
policies and other explanatory information (together hereinafter referred to as 
“Standalone Financial Statements” or “financial statements”). The aforesaid financial 
statements have been approved by the Board of Directors in its the meeting held on 30th 
May, 2024 and are subject to approval of the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting. 

1.1.2 Basis of Preparation 

The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis of accounting under the historical 
cost convention except for certain items in the financial statements that are measured at 
fair values at the end of each reporting period, as stated in the accounting policies set 
out below. The accounting policies have been applied consistently over all the periods 
presented in these financial statements. 

Current / Non-Current Classification: 
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the 
Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Division II of Schedule 
III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of business and the time between 
the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, 
the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current 
& non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 
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The financial statements are presented in Rupees in Lakhs, the functional currency of the 
Company. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest Lakhs (except per share 
data) to two decimals, unless otherwise indicated. Transactions and balances with values 
below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company have been reflected as “0” in the 
relevant notes to these financial statements. 

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are recorded in INR using the 
currency of the primary economic environment in which the company operates (the 
‘functional currency’). 

1.2 Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the 
Management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amount of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period and the accompanying disclosures. Difference between the actual 
results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known / 
materialized. 

In the assessment of the Company, the most significant effects of use of judgments and / 
or estimates on the amounts recognized in the financial statements relate to the 
following areas: 

Income taxes,
Financial instruments,
Useful lives of property, plant & equipment,
Valuation of inventories,
Measurement of recoverable amounts of assets / cash-generating units,
Assets and obligations relating to employee benefits,
Evaluation of recoverability of deferred tax assets; and
Provisions and Contingencies.

1.3 Measurement of Fair Value 

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. 
Fair value is the price that would be received on selling an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date 
in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company 
has access at that date. 

While measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Company uses valuation 
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 
available to measure the fair value using observable market data as far as possible and 
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. Fair values are categorized into 3 levels as 
follows: 

  Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
  Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, 

either directly (i.e., as prices for similar item) or indirectly (i.e., derived from 
prices) 

  Level 3: Inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) 
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1.4 Property, Plant and Equipment & Depreciation 

a) Tangible Assets

Tangible Assets are stated at cost net of recoverable taxes, trade discounts and rebates, 
less accumulated depreciation, and impairment loss, if any. The cost of Tangible Assets 
comprises its purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and any cost 
directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. All 
other expenses on existing fixed Assets including day to day repair and maintenance 
expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to statement of profit and loss for 
the period during which they are incurred. Gains or Losses arising from the de-
recognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the net disposable 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are recognized in the statement of 
profit and loss as and when the assets are de recognized. 

b) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. 
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized 
development costs, are capitalized and expenditure is reflected in the statement of profit 
and loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred. Cost comprises the purchase 
price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its 
intended use. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are 
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount 
of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as and when the asset 
is derecognized. 

c) Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation on tangible assets (other than land) is provided to the extent of depreciable 
amount on Straight Line Method at the rates and in the manner specified in Schedule II 
to the Companies Act, 2013 over its useful life. Depreciation for assets purchased /sold 
during the period is calculated pro rata from the date of such addition or up to the date 
of such sale / discarding, as the case may be. 

d) Impairment of Non-financial assets
At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that the
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss (if
any).

If the recoverable amount of asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the 
carrying amount asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is 
recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of as asset is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased 
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined 
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an 
impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

1.5 Financial Instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and 
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through 
Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL)) are added to or deducted from the fair value of 
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction 
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit and loss are recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

a) Financial assets
a. Recognition and initial measurement: -

A financial asset is initially recognised at fair value plus, for an item not recorded at FVTPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. Purchases and
sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, which is the date on which the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

b. Classification of financial assets:

On initial recognition, a financial asset is measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) or FVTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following 
conditions and is not designated at FVTPL: 
- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect

contractual cash flows; and
- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

A debt instrument is classified as FVTOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions 
and is not recognised at FVTPL, 
- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both

collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at 
each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the Other 
Comprehensive Income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, 
impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in 
OCI is reclassified from the equity to Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst 
holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method. 

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity 
instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an 
acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. 
For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to 
present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The 
Company makes such election on an instrument-by instrument basis. The classification is 
made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value 
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no 
recycling of the amounts from OCI to Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of 
investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within 
equity. 

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with 
all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

All other financial assets are classified and measured at FVTPL. 

In addition, on initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial 
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at 
FVTOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch 
that would otherwise arise. 

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting year, with 
any gains and losses arising on re-measurement recognized in statement of profit or loss. 
The net gain or loss recognized in statement of profit or loss incorporates any dividend or 
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘other income’ line item. 
Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognized when: 

- The Company’s right to receive the dividend is established,
- It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividends will flow to the

entity,
- The dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the

amount of dividend can be measured reliably.
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c. De-recognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

d. Impairment

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on
financial assets measured at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease
receivables, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial
asset, and financial guarantees not designated as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective 
risks of default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all 
contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and 
all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted 
at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for 
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Company estimates cash 
flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, 
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial 
instrument. 

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal 
to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has 
increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument 
has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the 
loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected 
credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit 
losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 
12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted 
over the next 12 months. 

If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected 
credit loss model in the previous year but determines at the end of a reporting year that 
the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition due to 
improvement in credit quality as compared to the previous year, the Company again 
measures the loss allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses. 

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit 
risk since initial recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default 
occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the 
amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessment, the Company compares 
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with 
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial 
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available 
without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since 
initial recognition. 
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For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset 
that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Company 
always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit 
losses. 

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade 
receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. 
This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes 
into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking 
information. 

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance 
are equally applied to debt instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is 
recognised in other comprehensive income and is not reduced from the carrying amount 
in the balance sheet. 

e. Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant year. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter year, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition. Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments
other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognized in
statement of profit or loss and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

b) Financial liabilities and equity instrument

a. Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

b. Equity Instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on
the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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c. Financial Liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either 
held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. 
A financial liability is classified as held for trading if: • 
o It has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near

term; or
o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments

that the Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-
term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be 
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if: 

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise,

o the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed, and its performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with the Company’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives,
and Ind AS 109 permits the entire combined contract to be designated as at
FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising 
on re-measurement recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or 
loss recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any interest paid on 
the financial liability and is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss. For 
Liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in 
own credit risk are recognized in OCI. 

d. Other financial liabilities:

The Company enters into deferred payment arrangements (acceptances)
whereby overseas lenders such as banks and other financial institutions make
payments to supplier’s banks for import of raw materials and property, plant and
equipment. The banks and financial institutions are subsequently repaid by the
Company at a later date providing working capital benefits. These arrangements
are in the nature of credit extended in normal operating cycle and these
arrangements for raw materials are recognized as Acceptances (under trade
payables) and arrangements for property, plant and equipment are recognised as
other financial liabilities. Interest borne by the company on such arrangements is
accounted as finance cost. Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and
trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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e. Derecognition of financial liabilities:

The Company de-recognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange
between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially
different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not
attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new
financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability de-recognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.6 Inventories 
Items of inventory are measured as per basis mentioned below:- 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw 
materials includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of finished goods and work 
in progress include cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of 
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding 
borrowing costs. Costs of inventories are determined on cost. 

Construction Materials and Consumables 
Construction Materials and Consumables are valued on FIFO basis at lower of cost 
or net realizable value. The Construction materials and consumables purchased for 
construction work issued to construction work in progress are treated as consumed. 

Construction Work in Progress 
Construction Works I\in Progress are valued at cost. Cost includes cost of land, 
development rights, rates and taxes, construction costs, borrowing costs, other 
direct expenditure, allocated overheads and other incidental expenses. 

Finished Stock of Flats 
Finished Stock of Flats is valued at cost or Net Realizable value whichever is lower. 
Cost includes cost of finance, which consist of interest on loans which is capitalized 
in proportion of its area remained unsold irrespective of its construction stage. 

1.7 Revenue Recognition 
The Company is following the “Percentage of Completion Method” of accounting for its 
construction activities. As per this method, revenue from sale of properties is recognized 
in Statement of Profit & Loss in proportion to the actual cost incurred as against the total 
estimated cost of projects under execution with the Company on transfer of significant 
risk and rewards to the buyer. 
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Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The 
Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it 
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria 
have been met for each of the Company's activities as described below. 

a) Revenue from sale of residential, commercial premises is recognized on issue of
allotment letters / execution of agreements.

b) Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the
amount outstanding and the interest rate applicable.

c) Profit / loss of the shares in partnership firm are recognized on the basis of audited
Financial Statements of the Partnership firm.

d) Other Income is accounted on accrual basis.

For other products, the Company recognizes revenue on the sale of products, net of 
discounts, when the products are delivered, risks and rewards of ownership are 
transferred to the dealer / customer. Sale of products is presented in financial 
statements net of GST and other indirect taxes where applicable, and net of other indirect 
taxes. Revenues are recognized when collectability of the resulting receivables is 
reasonably assured. 

1.8 Income Tax/Deferred Tax 
Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. 

a) Current Tax
Current Tax is determined, as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income
for the year, on the basis of Income Tax Act, 1961 u/s. 115BAA from AY 2024-25.
Hence MAT credit is not carried forward.

b) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax (both assets and liabilities) is recognised on difference between carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet and the corresponding tax base
used in computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against those deductible
temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right
exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Valuation of deferred tax is dependent on management’s assessment of future
recoverability of the deferred benefit. Expected recoverability may result from
expected taxable income in the future, planned transactions or planned tax
optimizing measures.
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As per Ind AS 12 the criteria for recognising deferred tax assets arising from carry 
forward of unused tax losses are the same that of recognising deferred tax assets 
arising from deductible temporary differences. However, the existence of unused 
tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. However, 
deferred tax asset can be accrued on the basis of management probability of using 
the unused tax losses against future taxable profits. 

Current tax and Deferred Tax items are recognised in correlation to the 
underlying transaction either in the Statement of Profit & Loss, other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity. 

1.9 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at an undiscounted amount 
in the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year/period in which the related services are 
rendered. 

The Company’s post-employment benefit consists of provident fund, gratuity, 
Company’s contributions to Provident Fund administered by Regional Provident Fund 
Authorities and ESIC and Labour Welfare Fund, which are defined contribution plans, 
are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year/period in 
which the services are rendered and the Company has no further obligation beyond 
making the contributions. 

The Company operates defined benefit plan for Gratuity. The cost of providing such 
defined benefit is determined using the projected unit credit method of actuarial 
valuation made at the end of the year. 

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income for gratuity. 

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, 
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the 
return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined 
benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding 
debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. 

Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the earlier of: 
The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
The date that the Company recognizes related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability 
or asset. The Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit 
obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss: 

Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses
on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
Net interest expense or income

During the Financial Year 2023-24, there was no employee with more than five years of 
services in the Company. 
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1.10 Borrowing cost 

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection 
with the arrangement of borrowings and exchange difference arising from foreign 
currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest 
cost. 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an 
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use 
or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. 

Transaction cost in respect of long-term borrowings is amortized over the tenor of 
respective loans using effective interest method, all other borrowing costs are charged 
in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred. 

1.11 Cash and Cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash, cash at bank, cheques & drafts on hand. The 
Company considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity at the date 
of purchase of three months or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts 
of cash to be cash equivalents. 

1.12 Cash Flows 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is 
adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals, or accruals of 
past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses 
associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, 
investing, and financing activities are segregated. 

1.13 Earnings Per Share 

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable 
to the equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such 
as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have 
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in 
resources. 
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For the purpose of, calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period 
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity 
shares. 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars For the year ended 
31st March, 2024 

For the year ended 
31st March, 2023 

1 Profit/(Loss) after Taxation as per 
Profit & Loss statement 

Rs.  (2,30,61,415) Rs.     (8,20,64,733) 

2 Weighted average no. of Equity 
Shares outstanding 

1,40,93,160 1,40,93,160 

3 Basic & Diluted earnings per share 
(Face Value Rs.10) 

   Rs.  (1.64) Rs.        (5.82) 

1.14 Provisions 

A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past 
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of 
the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined 
based on the best estimate. 

 (Rs. In Lakhs) 
Particulars Gratuity Provisions For 

Employees 
Expenses 
Payable 

EPF 
Payable 

TDS 
Payable 

Opening 
Balance 

49.42 2.84 0.24 0.03 0.40 

Addition   2.94  2.64 9.65 0.07 1.58 
Reversal    51.86  2.64 9..71 0.08 1.58 
Closing Balance 52.36 2.84 0.18 0.02 0.40 

1.15 Contingent liabilities and Assets 

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose 
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is 
not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required 
to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where 
there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The 
company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the 
financial statement. 
Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the Financial Statements. 

1.16 Segment information for primary segment reporting (by Business segments) 

The primary segment of the Company is business segment, which involved in business of 
Real Estate. As the company operates in a single primary business segment, no segment 
information thereof is given.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF 
KAMANWALA HOUSING CONSTRUCTION LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated IND AS financial statements of KAMANWALA 
HOUSING CONSTRUCTION LIMITED ('the Holding Company') and its subsidiaries (the Holding 
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as 'the Group'), which comprise the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss  (including  Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to IND AS consolidated Financial Statement, 
including a summary of  the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein 
after referred to as “ IND AS consolidated Financial Statement”). 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, except for the effects 
of the matters disclosed in Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the aforesaid consolidated IND AS 
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 as amended ('the Act') 
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') specified under Section 
133 of the Act ”) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, 
of the consolidated state of affairs (consolidated financial position) of the Group as at March 31, 2024, 
and its consolidated losses (consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive 
income), its consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that 
date. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 
We conducted our audit of the IND AS Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the IND AS Consolidated 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the 
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of 
the Act and the rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the IND AS 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

The Company’s current assets include interest receivable balances amounting to Rs.294.12 lakhs, in 
respect of which direct confirmations from the respective parties have not been provided to us by the 
management of the Company. In the absence of such direct confirmations from the parties or 
sufficient and appropriate alternate audit evidence, we are unable to comment on the adjustments 
and changes in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 1, Presentation of financial statements, if 
any, that may be required to the carrying value of the aforementioned balances in the accompanying 
IND AS Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in 
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the 
matter described below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report. 

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 
1 Evaluation of uncertain tax    positions: - 

The Holding Company has material 
uncertain tax positions including matters 
under dispute which involves significant 
judgment to determine the possible 
outcome of these disputes. 

There are pending litigations which has 
been mentioned in Note no. 39 A)- a) to d) 
to the Consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements. 

The litigations are with respect to dues of 
income tax, sales tax which has not been 
deposited by the company on account of 
disputes. 

Our audit procedures included the following: 
Obtained details of completed tax
assessments and demands upto the
year ended March 31,2024 from
management.
Discussed with appropriate senior
Management and evaluated 
Management’s underlying key 
assumptions in estimating the tax 
provisions. 
Assessed management’s estimate of
the possible outcome of the disputed
cases.
Assessed the reason behind the
pending litigations.

• Based on our procedures, we also
considered the adequacy of disclosures
in respect of pending litigations, and it
is disclosed accordingly.

2 Recoverability of investments in and loans / 
advances given to certain associates and Joint 
ventures and other Parties: 
The Holding Company has investments in 
certain associates and joint ventures with a 
carrying value of Rs. 43.50 Lakhs.  
These parties have either been incurring losses 
or has pending litigation and therefore dues 
are overdue. Assessment of the recoverable 
amount of the investments in and 
loans/advances including interest thereon has 
been identified as a key audit matter due to: 

Significance of the carrying amount of
these balances.

The calculation of certain credit
provisions for the holding Company is
inherently judgmental. Impairment provisions
(identified and unidentified) may not reflect
recent developments in credit quality.

The assessment requires management to
make significant estimates concerning the
estimated future cash flows, qualitative
assessments of the status of the project and its
future depending on balance work to be
performed or approvals to be received, and
growth rates based on management’s view of
future business prospects

Our audit procedures included the following: 

We have obtained and read 
Management’s assessment for 
identification of indicators of 
impairment.

We performed test of controls over
impairment process through inspection
of evidence of performance of these
controls.

Assessed the impairment assessment
made by the management and the
assumptions used, with particular
attention understanding the legal
dispute, commercial prospects of the
assets / projects.
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Changes to any of these assumptions
could lead to material changes in the 
estimated recoverable amount, impacting 
both potential impairment charges and also 
potential reversals of impairment taken in 
prior years. 

  

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 
3 Loans and advances to HDIL: 

The Holding Company had provided loans and 
advances to HDIL which was written down to 
Rs. 1205.60 Lakhs, out of which an amount of 
Rs. 606.20 lakhs have only been admitted as 
claim of the Company by the Resolution 
Professional of HDIL. The Management has 
decided to write off the remaining amount of 
Rs. 599.40 lakhs as sundry balance written off 
and the Management expects to recover the 
amount of Rs. 606.20 lakhs being claim 
admitted by the Resolution Professional of 
HDIL. 

Our audit procedures included the 
following: 

Our predecessor have obtained and verified 
the list of claims from Operational Creditors 
admitted by the Resolution Professional of 
HDIL as on 13th August, 2020. Accordingly, the 
claim of the Company has been admitted in 
the category of operational creditors 
amounting to Rs.606.2 Lakhs. 

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprise the information included in the Annual Report, 2023-24 but does not include 
the consolidated IND AS financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated IND AS financial statements does not cover the other information 
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated IND AS financial statements, our responsibility is 
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is 
materially inconsistent with the consolidated IND AS financial statements, or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we 
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 
The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of 
the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated  financial statements that give a 
true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs (consolidated financial position), consolidated 
profit or loss (consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income), 
consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) 
Rules, 2015, as amended. The Holding Company's Board of Directors is also responsible for 
ensuring accuracy of records including financial information considered necessary for the 
preparation of consolidated financial statements. Further, in terms of the provisions of the Act, the 
respective Board of Directors /Management of the entities included in the Group are responsible 
for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection   
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and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are

 

reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that 
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
These financial statements have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated 
financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the Consolidated IND AS Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors / 
Management of the entities included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the 
Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Management either intends to liquidate 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors / Management of the entities included in the Group are also 
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting   process of the Groups. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated IND AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated IND AS 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated IND 
AS financial statements. 

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of Consolidated Financial 
Statement is included in Annexure `A’.  This description forms part of our auditor’s report.  

Other Matter: 

We did not audit the financial statements of two jointly controlled entities, whose financial 
statements reflect total assets of Rs. 319.83 Lakhs as at 31st March, 2024 and total revenues of 
Rs Nil, and net cash flows amounting to Rs Nil for the year ended on that date, as considered in 
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. These financial statements are audited and have 
been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these 
jointly controlled entities, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of  

the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid jointly controlled entities, is based solely on figures 
furnished to us by the Management. 

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our 
reliance on the figures and data furnished by the Management. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the

Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, based on our audit of
holding company and there being no other corporate entity as the subsidiaries, etc. as noted in
the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph we give in the “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified
in paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order The Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub- section (11) of section 143 of the
Act.
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2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b) In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters disclosed in Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as appears from our
examination of those books and proper returns adequate for the purpose of our audit.

c) The consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including
other comprehensive income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the statement of
changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d) In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters disclosed in Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2015 as amended.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act

f) With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Control with reference to these
consolidated Financial Statements of the group companies and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure C”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operative effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in Auditors report in accordance with the
requirement of section 197 (16) of the Act as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to explanation given to us the remuneration paid by the
company to its directors of the company during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Consolidated IND AS Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending litigations
on the consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note No.39A (a to d) to the
consolidated financial Statements.

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts, as such
the questions of commenting on any material foreseeable losses thereon does not arise.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Group.  The question of delay in transferring such
sum does not arise.

iv. a)  The group management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts to the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
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(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

b) The group management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts of the consolidated Ind AS
Financial statements, no funds have been received by the company from any persons  or
entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances; nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v) The Holding Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

vi) Based on our examination which included test checks performed by us on the holding
Company except for the instances mentioned below, have used accounting software’s
for maintain their respective books of account for the financial year ended March 31,
2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software’s.
Further, during the course of audit, we have not come across any instance of the audit
trail feature being tampered with.

The financial statement of two subsidiaries that are not material to the Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Group, have not been audited under the provisions of the
Act, since they are not company, as of the date of this report. Therefore, we are unable
to comment on the reporting requirement under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 in respect of these two subsidiaries.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 
April1, 2023 reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record 
retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2014. 

For VINOD KUMAR JAIN & CO., 
 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
 Firm Registration Number: 111513W 

 VINOD KUMAR JAIN  
 PROPERITOR M.NO. 36373 
 UDIN: 24036373BKAKAP5328 

Place:  Mumbai   
Date: 30th May, 2024 
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Annexure “A”: Forming part of report of independent auditors on the consolidated IND AS to the members of 
KAMANWALA HOUSING CONSTRUCTON LIMITED for the year ended 31st March 2024 

Responsibilities for Audit of Financial Statement 
As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism   throughout the audit. We, also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the holding company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period 
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law 
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication. 

For VINOD KUMAR JAIN & CO., 
   CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
 Firm Registration Number: 111513W 

 VINOD KUMAR JAIN  
 PROPERITOR M.NO. 36373 
 UDIN: 24036373BKAKAP5328 

Place:  Mumbai  
Date: 30th May, 2024 
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Annexure B 

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory 
requirements” of our Independent Auditor’s report of even date, to the members of 
KAMANWALA HOUSING CONSTRUCTON LIMITED (“the Holding Company”) on the 
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024  

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Holding 
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of 
audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, and based on the consideration of 
reports of auditors in respect of holding company and there being no corporate 
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, we state that there are no adverse remarks by 
the respective auditors in their reports on Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 of the 
companies included in the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

ANNEXURE ‘C’ 

TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED IND AS 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KAMANWALA HOUSING CONSTRUCTION LIMITED 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Kamanwala 
Housing Construction Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company” or “the 
Company”) as of March 31, 2024, in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated IND AS 
financial statements of the company for the year ended on that date.  

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls. 
The Holding Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and 
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 
2013. 
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Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.  Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk.  The procedure selected depends on the 
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting. 
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purpose in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company 
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 
company; (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements.  

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to  error or fraud may occur and not be detected.  Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
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Opinion 
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us 
the  Holding Company has, maintained in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2024, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For VINOD KUMAR JAIN & CO. 
 Chartered Accountants, 
 FRN 111513W 

 Vinod Kumar Jain 
 Proprietor M. No. 36373 

PLACE: MUMBAI 
DATED: 30th May, 2024 
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KAMANWALA HOUSING CONSTRUCTION LIMITED  

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2024: GROUP BACKGROUND: 

Kamanwala Housing Construction Limited (the ‘Holding Company’) is a public limited Company domiciled 
and incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the Holding Company 
is located at 406, New Udyog Mandir - 2, Mogul Lane, Mahim - (West) Mumbai - 400016. 

The Holding Company is partner in the firm “Kamanwala Lakshachandi Todays Developers” and holds 50% 
share therein.  The firm is engaged in development of a commercial projects “Savoy Chambers” Santacruz 
(West). 

The Holding Company is also a partner in the firm “Kamanwala Lakshachandi Todays Constructions” and 
holds 50% share therein.  The firm is engaged in developing residential project “Shimmering Heights” at 
Mahim. 

The Group is engaged in the Real Estate Development business including construction of Residential and 
Commercial buildings and related activities. 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS AND NOTES 
FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024 

  ________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Note 1 Significant Accounting Policies  

1.1 Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements 

1.1.1 Statement of Compliance 

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (“the Ind 
AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and presentation requirement of Division II 
of Schedule III of the Act. Accordingly, the Group has prepared these Consolidated Financial 
Statements which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended as on that date, and accounting 
policies and other explanatory information (together hereinafter referred to as “Consolidated 
Financial Statements” or “financial statements”). The aforesaid financial statements have been 
approved by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company in its meeting held on 30th May, 2024 
and are subject to approval of the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

1.1.2 Basis of Preparation 

The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis of accounting under the historical cost 
convention except for certain items in the financial statements that are measured at fair values at 
the end of each reporting period, as stated in the accounting policies set out below. The 
accounting policies have been applied consistently over all the periods presented in these 
financial statements. 
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KAMANWALA HOUSING CONSTRUCTION LIMITED  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2024 

Current / Non-Current Classification: 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal 
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 
2013. Based on the nature of business and the time between the acquisition of assets for 
processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its 
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current & non-current classification of assets and 
liabilities. 

The financial statements are presented in Rupees in Lakhs, the functional currency of the Group. All 
amounts have been rounded off to the nearest Lakhs (except per share data) to two decimals, 
unless otherwise indicated. Transactions and balances with values below the rounding off norm 
adopted by the Group have been reflected as “0” in the relevant notes to these financial 
statements. 

Items included in the financial statements of the Group are recorded in INR using the currency of 
the primary economic environment in which the Group operates (the ‘functional currency’). 

1.2 Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to 
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and 
liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period and the accompanying 
disclosures. Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in 
which the results are known / materialized. 

In the assessment of the Group, the most significant effects of use of judgments and / or 
estimates on the amounts recognized in the financial statements relate to the following areas: 

Income Taxes,
Financial instruments,
Useful lives of property, plant & equipment,
Valuation of inventories,
Measurement of recoverable amounts of assets / cash-generating units,
Assets and obligations relating to employee benefits,
Evaluation of recoverability of deferred tax assets, and
Provisions and Contingencies.

1.3 Measurement of Fair Value 

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the 
price that would be received on selling an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its 
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Group has access at that date. 
While measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Group uses valuation techniques that 
are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure the 
fair value using observable market data as far as possible and minimizing the use of unobservable 
inputs. Fair values are categorized into 3 levels as follows: 
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets or liability, either 

directly (i.e., as prices for similar item) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 
Level 3: inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) 
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KAMANWALA HOUSING CONSTRUCTION LIMITED  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2024 

1.4 Property, Plant and Equipment & Depreciation 

a) Tangible Assets
Tangible Assets are stated at cost net of recoverable taxes, trade discounts and rebates, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. The cost of Tangible Assets comprises
its purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and any cost directly
attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. All other
expenses on existing fixed Assets including day to day repair and maintenance expenditure
and cost of replacing parts, are charged to statement of profit and loss for the period
during which they are incurred. Gains or Losses arising from the de-recognition of fixed
assets are measured as the difference between the net disposable proceeds and the carrying
amount of the assets and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as and when the
assets are de recognized.

b) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are
capitalized and expenditure is reflected in the statement of profit and loss in the year in
which the expenditure is incurred. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable
cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use. Gains or losses
arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss as and when the asset is derecognized.

c) Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation on tangible assets (other than land) is provided to the extent of depreciable
amount on Straight Line Method at the rates and in the manner specified in Schedule II to
the Companies Act, 2013 over its useful life. Depreciation for assets purchased /sold during
the period is calculated pro rata from the date of such addition or up to the date of such sale
/ discarding, as the case may be.

d) Impairment of Non-financial assets
At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that the assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss (if any).

If the recoverable amount of asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the 
carrying amount asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised 
as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of as asset is increased 
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying amount 
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment 
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is 
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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KAMANWALA HOUSING CONSTRUCTION LIMITED  
   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2024 

1.5 Financial Instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that 
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other 
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss 
(FVTPL)) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, 
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of 
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are recognised 
immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

a) Financial assets
a. Recognition and initial measurement –

A financial asset is initially recognised at fair value plus, for an item not recorded at, 
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. Purchases and sales 
of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, which is the date on which the Group 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

b. Classification of financial assets:

On initial recognition, a financial asset is measured at amortised cost, fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) or FVTPL. 
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and 
is not designated at FVTPL: 
- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual

cash flows; and
- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that

are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt instrument is classified as FVTOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
recognised at FVTPL, 
- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting

contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that

are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each 
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the Other Comprehensive 
Income (OCI). However, the Group recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and 
foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On de-recognition of the asset, 
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to Statement of 
Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest 
income using the EIR method. 
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KAMANWALA HOUSING CONSTRUCTION LIMITED  
   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2024 

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which 
are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business 
combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity 
instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive 
income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such election on an instrument-by 
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on 
the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the 
amounts from OCI to Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the 
Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all 
changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL. 

In addition, on initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that 
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as at FVTPL if 
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. 

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting year, with any 
gains and losses arising on re-measurement recognized in statement of profit or loss. The net 
gain or loss recognized in statement of profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned 
on the financial asset and is included in the ‘other income’ line item. 

Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognized when: 
- The Group’s right to receive the dividends is established,
- It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividends will flow to the entity,
- The dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the

amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

c. De-recognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another party.

d. Impairment

The Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial
assets measured at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade
receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset, and financial
guarantees not designated as at FVTPL.
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KAMANWALA HOUSING CONSTRUCTION LIMITED 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: GROUP BACKGROUND:

 

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of 
default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows 
that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group 
expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (or 
credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). 
The Group estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument 
(for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that 
financial instrument. 

The Group measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the 
lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased 
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased 
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial 
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit 
losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash 
shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, 
are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months. 

If the Group measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss 
model in the previous year but determines at the end of a reporting year that the credit risk has 
not increased significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as 
compared to the previous year, the Group again measures the loss allowance based on 12-month 
expected credit losses. 

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since 
initial recognition, the Group uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected 
life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To 
make that assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial 
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial 
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable 
information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases 
in credit risk since initial recognition. 

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that 
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Group always measures the 
loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. 

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, 
the Group has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit 
loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical 
credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information. 

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are 
equally applied to debt instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognised in other 
comprehensive income and is not reduced from the carrying amount in the balance sheet. 
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KAMANWALA HOUSING CONSTRUCTION LIMITED  
   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2024 

e. Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant year. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter year, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. Income is recognised
on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL. Interest income is recognized in statement of profit or loss and is included in the ‘Other
income’ line item.

b) Financial liabilities and equity instrument

a. Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by holding company are classified as either financial 
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and 
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. 

b. Equity Instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an 
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the holding Company 
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Repurchase of the 
holding Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. 
No gain or loss is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or 
cancellation of the Holding Company’s own equity instruments. 

c. Financial Liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for 
trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. 
A financial liability is classified as held for trading if: • 

o It has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or
o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that

the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.
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KAMANWALA HOUSING CONSTRUCTION LIMITED  
   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2024 

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at 
FVTPL upon initial recognition if: 

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise,

o the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or
both, which is managed, and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind
AS 109 permits the entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in
accordance with Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-
measurement recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognised in 
Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is 
included in the Statement of Profit and Loss. For Liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value 
gains / losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. 

d. Other financial liabilities:

The Group enters into the deferred payment arrangements (acceptances) whereby overseas
lenders such as banks and other financial institutions make payments to supplier’s banks for
import of raw materials and property, plant and equipment. The banks and financial
institutions are subsequently repaid by the Group at a later date providing working capital
benefits. These arrangements are in the nature of credit extended in normal operating cycle
and these arrangements for raw materials are recognized as Acceptances (under trade
payables) and arrangements for property, plant and equipment are recognised as other
financial liabilities. Interest borne by the Group on such arrangements is accounted as
finance cost. Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

e. De-recognition of financial liabilities:

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, its obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange between an existing borrower and
lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability.
Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or
not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment
of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability de-recognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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1.6 Inventories 
Items of inventory are measured as per basis mentioned below- 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of raw materials includes 
cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and 
condition. Cost of finished goods and work in progress include cost of direct materials and labour 
and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but 
excluding borrowing costs. Costs of inventories are determined on cost. 

Construction Materials and Consumables 

Construction Materials and Consumables are valued on FIFO basis at lower of cost or net realizable 
value. The Construction materials and consumables purchased for construction work issued to 
construction work in progress are treated as consumed. 

Construction Work in Progress 

Construction Works In Progress are valued at cost. Cost includes cost of land, development 
rights, rates and taxes, construction costs, borrowing costs, other direct expenditure, allocated 
overheads and other incidental expenses. 

Finished Stock of Flats 

Finished Stock of Flats is valued at cost or Net Realizable value whichever is lower. Cost includes 
cost of finance, which consist of interest on loans which is capitalized in proportion of its area 
remained unsold irrespective of its construction stage. 

1.7 Revenue Recognition 

The Group is following the “Percentage of Completion Method” of accounting for its construction 
activities. As per this method, revenue from sale of properties is recognized in Statement of 
Profit & Loss in proportion to the actual cost incurred as against the total estimated cost of 
projects under execution with the Group on transfer of significant risk and rewards to the buyer. 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The Group 
recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that 
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the 
Group 's activities as described below 

a) Revenue from sale of residential, commercial premises is recognized on issue of
allotment letters / execution of agreements.

b) Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the interest rate applicable.

c) Profit / loss of the shares in partnership firm are recognized on the basis of audited
Financial Statements of the Partnership firm.

d) Other Income is accounted on accrual basis.
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For other products, the Group recognizes revenue on the sale of products, net of discounts, 
when the products are delivered, risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the dealer / 
customer. Sale of products is presented in financial statements net of GST and other indirect 
taxes where applicable, and net of other indirect taxes. Revenues are recognized when 
collectability of the resulting receivables is reasonably assured. 

1.8 Income Tax/Deferred Tax 
Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. 

a) Current Tax
Current Tax is determined, as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the
year, on the basis of Income Tax Act, 1961 u/s. 115BAA.

b) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax (both assets and liabilities) is recognised on difference between carrying amount 
of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet and the corresponding tax base used in 
computation of taxable profit. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent 
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against those deductible temporary 
differences. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply 
in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax 
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists 
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the 
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

Valuation of deferred tax is dependent on management’s assessment of future recoverability 
of the deferred benefit. Expected recoverability may result from expected taxable income in 
the future, planned transactions or planned tax optimizing measures. 

As per Ind AS 12 the criteria for recognising deferred tax assets arising from carry forward of 
unused tax losses are the same that of recognising deferred tax assets arising from 
deductible temporary differences. However, the existence of unused tax losses is strong 
evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. However, deferred tax asset can be 
accrued on the basis of Management probability of using the unused tax losses against 
future taxable profits. 

Current tax and Deferred Tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction 
either in the Statement of Profit & Loss, other comprehensive income or directly in equity. 
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1.9 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at an undiscounted amount in the 
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year / period in which the related services are rendered. 

The Group’s post-employment benefit consists of provident fund, gratuity, Group’s 
contributions to Provident Fund administered by Regional Provident Fund Authorities and ESIC 
and Labour Welfare Fund, which are defined contribution plans, are recognized as an expense in 
the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year / period in which the services are rendered and the 
Group has no further obligation beyond making the contributions. 

The Holding Company operates defined benefit plan for Gratuity. The cost of providing such 
defined benefit is determined using the projected unit credit method of actuarial valuation made 
at the end of the year. 

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income for gratuity. 

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, 
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on 
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are 
recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained 
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to 
profit or loss in subsequent periods. 

Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the earlier of: 

The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
The date that the Group recognizes related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset.  The Holding Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit
obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
Net interest expense or income

During the Financial Year 2023-24, there was no employee with more than five years of services
in the Group.

1.10 Borrowing cost 

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the 
arrangement of borrowings and exchange difference arising from foreign currency borrowings 
to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset 
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are 
capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. 

Transaction cost in respect of long-term borrowings is amortized over the tenor of respective 
loans using effective interest method, all other borrowing costs are charged in the statement of 
profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred. 
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1.11 Cash and Cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash and cheque in 
hand, bank balances, demand deposits with banks where the original maturity is three months 
or less and other short term highly liquid investments net of bank overdrafts which are 
repayable on demand as this form an integral part of the Group’s cash management. 

1.12 Cash Flows 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for 
the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future 
operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or 
financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities are 
segregated. 

1.13 Earnings Per Share 

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the 
equity shareholders of the Holding Company by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, 
other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity 
shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable 
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period 
is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares 

 (Figures in Rupees) 
Sr. no Particulars For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 
For the year ended 
31st March, 2023 

I Profit/ (Loss) after Taxation as per 
statement of Profit & Loss 

(2,30,64,415)    (8,43,41,190) 

II Weighted average no. of Equity Shares 
outstanding 

  1,40,93,160 1,40,93,160 

III Basic & Diluted earnings per share (Face 
Value Rs. 10) 

(1.64) (5.98) 

1.14 Provisions 

A provision is recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are 
not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate. 

 (Rupees in Lakhs) 
Particulars Gratuity Provisions 

for 
Employees 

Expenses 
Payable 

EPF 
Payable 

Professional 
Tax- Salary 

TDS 
Payable 

Opening Balance 49.42 2.84 0.24 0.03 0.00 0.40 
Addition  2.94  2.64 9.65 0.07 0.03 1.58 
Reversal    51.86  2.64 9..71 0.08 0.00 1.58 
Closing Balance 52.36 2.84 0.18 0.02 0.03 0.40 
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1.15 Contingent liabilities and Assets 
Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will 
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent 
liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized 
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but 
discloses its existence in the financial statement. 
Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the Financial Statements. 

1.16 Segment information for primary segment reporting (by Business segments) 
The primary segment of the Group is business segment, which involved in business of Real 
Estate. As the Group operates in a single primary business segment, no segment information 
thereof is given. 

1.18 Basis of Consolidation: 
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Holding Company 
(‘the Company’) and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company has: 

Power over the investee,
Is exposed or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
Has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that majority of voting rights result in control. To support this 
presumption and when the Company has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an 
investee, the Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has 
power over an investee, including: 

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee,
Rights arising from other contractual arrangement,
The Company’s voting rights and potential voting rights,
The size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the
holdings of the other voting rights holders.

The Company re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances 
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of 
a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the 
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary 
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from 
the date the Company gains control until the date the Company ceases to control the subsidiary. 

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like 
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting 
policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions 
and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member’s 
financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with 
the Group’s accounting policies. 
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The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to 
same reporting date as that of the Holding company, i.e., year ended on 31st March. 

Consolidation procedure: 
a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the

Holding Company with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the
subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognized in the
consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the Holding Company’s investment in each
subsidiary and the Holding Company’s portion of equity of each subsidiary.

c) Eliminate in full intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from
intra-group transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets,
are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires
recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12, Income Taxes applies to
temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from
intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the 
owners of the Holding Company and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the 
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the 
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s 
accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash 
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on 
consolidation. 

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an 
equity transaction. 
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